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Coe. Cynthia (CRT) 

From: 
Sent: 

Alphonse Gerhardstein [AGerhardstein@gbfirm.com] 
Saturday, January 11, 2014 3:25 PM 

To: Thomas N. Anger 
Cc: Judith B. Goldstein; Terry Schuster; Kim Tandy; Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT); Cae, Cynthia 

DomirlQLlez··R"ese, Silvia (CRT); Will Harrell; Andrea Weismann; daphne glindmeyer 
Subject: FM'""."lr m needed 

Tom - Thanks for the cooperation Kim and I got at CJCF yesterday. [write to urge prompt action regarding ••• 
_. I am not a clinician but I have been representing mentally ill inmates for 37 years. Mr. strikes me as 
extremely mentally iii. More importantly, he seems to be experiencing excessive seclusion - particularly in the 
Observation Cell on Oak - which appears to make him worse. 

I do not have his file. Only my interview. He reports that he is taking significant psych meds. Staff and the client both 
reported that he bangs his head frequently. He had fresh head injuries as I spoke to him. Something drives him to self 
destructive behavior and whatever has been tried so far does not seem to be working. I certainly got the impression 
that he remains at a current risk of seriously harming himself. I ask that DYS, Dr. Weisman and Dr. Glindmeyer take a 
careful look at this young man and act promptly to ensure his safety and adequate treatment. Thanks very much. 

Alphonse A. Gerhardstein 
Gerhardstein & Branch Co LP A 
432 Walnnt Street, Suite 400 
Cincinnati, OR 45202 
Office 513.621.9100 
FAX 513.345.5543 
www.gbfirrn.com 

From: Judith B. Goldstein [mailto:Judith.Goldstein@ohioattorneygeneral.gov] 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 1:37 PM 
To: Terry Schuster; Thomas N. Anger; Calhoun, Dustin; Alphonse Gerhardstein; Kim Tandy; Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT); 
Cae, Cynthia (CRT); Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT); Will Harrell; Andrea Weismann; daphne glindmeyer 
Subject: RE: Summary of parties' agreement re: follow-up to Glindmeyer and Weisman reports 

I will certainly check into this asap. I do know that for the documents requested by Dr. Weisman (which were listed in 
'tour summary as due on Jan. 6th

), we were following her mid-January deadline because we were working under the 
understanding that she needed documents for a report and plaintiff's counsel needed different documents for the Jan. 
29th conference. I'll get back to you with a response. 

Judith B. Goldstein 
Uuit Coordinator - Criminal Justice Section/Corrections Litigation Unit 
Office of Ohio Attorney General Mike De Wine 
150 East Gay Street, 16th Floor 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
Office number: 614-644-8685 
Judith.Goldstein@OhioAttorneyGeneral.gov 
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Confidentiality Notice: This message is intended for use only by the individual or entity to whom or which it is addressed 
and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and/or otherwise exempt from disclosure under applicable 
law. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the 
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this 
communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify me immediately by 
telephone. 

From: Terry Schuster [mailto:shmonitor.schuster@qmail.coml 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2014 1:33 PM 
To: Judith B. Goldstein; Thomas N. Anger; Calhoun, Dustin; Alphonse Gerhardstein; Kim Tandy; Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT); 
Coe, Cynthia (CRT); Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT); Will Harrell; Andrea Weismann; daphne glindmeyer 
Subject: Fwd: Summary of parties' agreement re: follow-up to Glindmeyer and Weisman reports 

Hi Judy, 

We need some further explanation from you. You said in your recent email that Defendant has provided all of 
the documents and met all of the deadlines agreed to in chambers. I am forwarding the email that I sent out to 
everyone on Dec. 22nd. It includes an attached summary of the parties' agreement in chambers. 

As far as we can tell, DYS has not provided any of the documents and information on the second page of the 
attached summary. 

Additionally, DYS has not provided the items listed on the first page under the heading "QAlQI and peer review 
for mental health" or under the heading "discipline for youth on the mental health caseload". [Note that we 
agreed with Dustin's alternate definition of "frequent flyers," which he included in an email response to this 
Dec. 22nd emaiL] 

I have also attached a short memo that Dr. Weisman wrote up for Will explaining what she is able to report on 
(by Monday) based on what she's been provided so far, and what she's not able to report on. 

It seems as though DYS has overlooked quite offew of the items that were included in this summary. Can you 
please explain what happened? 

Thanks, 
Terry and Will 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Terry Schuster <shmonitor.schuster@gmail.com> 
Date: Sun, Dec 22, 2013 at 8:28 PM 
Subject: Summary of parties' agreement re: follow-up to Glindmeyer and Weisman reports 
To: "Judith B. Goldstein" <Judith.Goldstein@ohioattorneygeneraLgov>, "Thomas N. Auger" 
<thomas.anger@ohioattorneygeneraLgov>, "Calhoun, Dustin" <dustin.calhoun@dys.ohio.gov>, "Reed, 
Harvey" <Harvey.Reed@dys.ohio.gov>, "linda.janes@dvs.ohio.gov" <linda.janes@dys.ohio.gov>, "Trim, 
Ginine" <ginine.trim@dys.ohio.gov>, Will Harrell <shmonitor.harrell@gmaiLcom>, Alphonse Gerhardstein 
<AGerhardstein@gbfirm.com>, Kim Tandy <ktandy@childrenslawkv.org>, "Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT)" 
<Silvia.Dominguez-Reese@usdoj.gov>, "Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT)" <Benjarnin.Tayloe@usdoj.gov>, "Coe, 
Cynthia (CRT)" <Cvnthia.Coe@usdoj.gov>, daphne glindmeyer <dglindmever@gmaiLcom>, Audrea 
Weismann <Aweisman@aoLcom>, Kelly Dedel <kelly.dedel@gmaiLcom> 
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Dear DYS administrators, DYS counsel, S.H. counsel, and DOJ, 

On Thursday we discussed various follow-up items from the reports written by Dr. Glindmeyer and Dr. 
Weisman. I have attached a sunnnary. 

If anyone needs clarification on any ofthe items in the sunnnary, please let us know by close of business on 
Monday, 

The deadline for the documentation itemized in the attached sunnnary is January 6th. If you need a couple of 
extra days, let us know -- we have some wiggle room on that deadline, but we are aiming to circulate our final 
mental health and psychiatry reports on Jan. 13th, so we'll need all of the documentation sometime on the week 
of January 6th. We plan to file the final reports with the Court before January 25th. 

Thanks, 
Terry 

Terry Schuster, Esq. 
Special Assistant to the Federal Court Monitor 
S.H v. Reed Monitoring Team 

(512) 468-4486 
sbmonitor.schuster@grnail.com 

Terry Schuster, Esq. 
Special Assistant to the Federal Court Monitor 
S.H v. Reed Monitoring Team 

(512) 468-4486 
shmonitor.schuster@gmail.com 

3 

Case: 2:08-cv-00475-ALM-MRA Doc #: 131-1 Filed: 03/12/14 Page: 4 of 37 PAGEID #: 2968 



Attachment B 

Case: 2:08-cv-00475-ALM-MRA Doc #: 131-1 Filed: 03/12/14 Page: 5 of 37 PAGEID #: 2969 



Coe. Cynthia (CRT) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT) 
Thursday, March 06, 2014 5:48 PM 
Cae, Cynthia (CRT) 

Subject: FW: Seclusion concems at SJCF 

From: Calhoun, Dustin [mailto:Dustin,Calhoun@dys.ohio.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 04, 2013 11:59 AM 
To: Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT); Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT) 
Cc: 'Thomas N. Anger'; Judith B. Goldstein 
Subject: Seclusion concems at SJCF 

Silvia and Bo, 

It was a pleasure speaking with the two of you this morning and I believe our conversation was very productive. Before I 
addressed the potential for contracting with Kelly with Director Reed, I wanted to drill down and see exactly what we 
are dealing with and looked at the numbers for November. 

Out of the 10 young men that were referenced in Kelly's report, the following five are all that remain at Scioto: 

•••••••••••••••• with the caveat that is scheduled to be released tomorrow. 

The following represents the seclusion HOURS for the month of November for the above youth: 

4.5 hours 
1.45 hours 
142.3 hours (Act of Violence) 
80.93 hours (Act of Violence) 
1.0 hour 

As you can see, the seclusion hours are not alarming for these youth. After reviewing this email, please advise if your 
p~sition has changed. 

Thanks, 

Dustin J. Calhoun· 
Chief Legal Counsel 
Ohio Department of Youth Services 
30 West Spring Street, Sth Floor 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
614.728.7353 (Office) 
614.752.9078 (Fax) 
Dustin.Calhoun@dys.ohio.gov 

This message, and any response to it, may constitute a public record and 
thus may be publicly available to anyone who requests it in accordance 
with Chapter 149 of the Ohio Revised Code, 
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Coe, Cynthia (CRT) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

fyi 

Alphonse Gerhardstein [AGerhardstein@gbfirm.com] 
Wednesday, January 15, 2014 2:24 PM 
Tayloe, Benjamin (CRT); Coe, Cynthia (CRT); Dominguez-Reese, Silvia (CRT) 
FW: Request that Dr. Weisman resign 

From: Will Harrell [mailto:shmonitor.harrell@gmail,com] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2014 12:02 PM 
To: Alphonse Gerhardstein 
Cc: Judith B. Goldstein; ktandy@childrenslawky,org; Thomas N. Anger; dustin.calhoun@dys.ohio.gov; Terry Schuster; 
Andi Weisman 
Subject: Re: Request that Dr. Weisman resign 

Judy: 

I've reviewed your letter and the email from AI. I've also discussed the allegations with Dr. Weisman. Here is 
my opinion. 

1. Andi did not step outside of her monitor boundaries in following up on this kid's situation as reported to us by 
.AJ. In fact, I explicitly asked her to do so. Al reported his concerns about youth and requested that DYS 
and the monitors look into it. The concerns Al reported relate precisely to ssue that remains in this 
c.ase--seclusion of youth with mental health disorders. Al informed us that _mother was actively 
involved with him and therefor she would be a good source of information s. We are authorized to 
gather information from any source we deem necessary such as staff, youth, advocates, oversight bodies and 
family members. We have done so throughout the span of this case and we will continue to do so. 

2. Andi maintains that she didn't release private medical information to anyone without the youth's consent. I 
have no reason to believe she did. Andi didn't have any private medical information to release. 

3. Andi maintains that she didn't render psychological services or a psychological evaluation. I have no reason 
to believe she did. She never spoke with this youth. And when she spoke with his mother, she was merely 
gathering information relevant to her review of the seclusion of youth on the mental health case load. 

5. There is nothing slanderous about Andi's statement in her report. She is reporting what _mother stated 
to her. However, we will adjust the tone of that statement before submitting the report to t for the 
record. 

There have been many situations in the past where in the course of our monitoring we have uncovered an 
individual case that required urgent attention or that an urgent case is brought to our attention by plaintiffs 
council or other individuals. When that happens, we try to get it to the attention of the appropriate DYS officials 
as soon as we can. This was simply another one of those instances and it appears that this youth is now getting 
the attention he needed. How is that not a good thing? I assure you that is what Judge Marbley expects of us. 

I am willing to seek Judge Marbley's opinion on this matter or you can bring it to him directly. But I advise you 
to drop this distraction and get refocused on resolving the remaining substantive issues in the case. The 
Attorney General's office has been trying to get Dr. Weisman removed from this case for over a year. Rather 
than shoot the messenger, I suggest you address the message. 
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Regards, 

Will Harrell 

On Wed, Jan 15,2014 at 8:30 AM, Alphonse Gerhardstein <AGerhardstein01gbfirm.com> wrote: 

Dear Judy - Will shared with us your letter requesting Dr. Weisman's resignation. Plaintiffs do not agree to 
your request. As you may know from previous disputes the agreement of Plaintiffs' counsel is necessary in 
order to remove a member of the monitoring team. We have not even been advised of the facts of the 
underlying dispute. 

Here is what I know. Because of concern for one youth's safety, I requested DYS and the monitor team experts 
to look into the circumstances of a specific youth I interviewed last Friday. The youth called his mother who in 
turn called me. She had information on his history. I passed her name and number to Will and the monitor 
experts and it is my understanding that Will requested that Dr. Weisman talk to the mother. There is absolutely 
nothing wrong with those actions. It is not unusual. It has always been our practice to permit members of the 
monitoring team to access information from persons with knowledge. See e.g., Doc. 108 at page 82 where 
Monitors are allowed "unobstructed access to staff and youth and other persons having information relevant to 
the implementation of this Stipulation." I spoke with the youth's mom this morning and she reports that she 
speaks with her son by phone frequently and visits at least once a month. She seems genuinely excited that he 
will get effective treatment as result of the current efforts. It seems to me everyone is working to make that 
happen. 

As far as I know the needs of the youth are now being evaluated. That was the goal. There is no basis here for 
DYS to seek anyone's resignation. Please call me to discuss the matter. 

Alphonse A. Gerhardstein 

Gerhardstein & Branch Co LP A 

432 Walnut Street, Suite 400 

Cincinnati, OH 45202 

Office 513.621.9100 

FAX 513.345.5543 

www.gbfirm.com 
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Benjamin 0. Tayloe Jr., Esq. 
U. S. Department of Justice 
Civil Rights Division 
950 Pennsylvania Avenue NW 
Washington, DO 20530 

August 22, 20:1.3 

Office (614) 644"7233 
Fax (614) 728-9327 . 
150 East Gay Street, 16th Floor 
Oolumbus, Ohio 43215 
www.OhloAttorneyGeneral.gov 

Alphonse Gerhardst.,in, Esq. 
Gerha'rdsteln & Bra rich Co., LPA 
432 Walnut street, Suite 400 
Clnolnnati, OH 45202 

Kim Tandy-Brown, ·Esq. 
Ohlldren's Law Center 
1002 Russell Street 
Covington, KY 410:11 

RE: Use of Programmatlo Restraints and Restructuring of Progress Unit 

Dear Attomeys for S.H. and the Department of Justice: 

DYS has decided to make the following ohanges to th_e Progress Unit: 

First, the Progress Unit wlll be restructured In such a way that any youth admitted to 
Progress will be placed on Transition Phase I. Further, any youtb demoted from Transition Phase II 
will be demoted only to Transition Phase I. No youth will be demoted from Transition Phase I. 

Second, incidental to this ohange, DYS will no longer be using programmatic restraints: 

These ohanges will be formalized and incorporated Into polioy as SOOIl as possible. During 
this transition time, DYS will neither admit nor demote youth into Phase I, nor will It use 
programmatio restraints. . 

Thank you for your continued input and patlenoe as DYS makes these ohanges. 

TNA:mcc 

cc: Jackie Ouncannan 
Kelly Dedel 
SIlvia Dominguez 
Will Harrell 
Rashida ogletree 
Terry Schuster 

Very truly yours, 

MIKE: DeWINiO 
Ohio Attomey General 

s[fhomas N. Anger 
THOMAS N_ ANGER 
Ms1stentAttomey General 
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TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

Tom Anger, Linda Janes, Amy Ast-Ohio DYS 
Bo Tayloe, Silvia Dominguez-U.S. DOJ 

Kelly Dedel, Ph.D., Lead Monitor U.S. v State of Ohio 

Results of Seclusion Analysis 

November 8, 2013 

As you know, while I was on site at Scioto during the week of October 14,2013, I became 
curious about the accumulation of seclusion hours for certain youth. While on site, I noted that 
the IH Officer and Superintendent used a tempered approach in the number of seclusion hours 
ordered as a sanction for individual AOVs (e.g., they did not order the maximum permissible, but 
more often something less). However, I also noticed that the same youth's names kept coming 
up in the documentation, over and over again. 

I did not have time to further investigate this while I was on site, so upon returning home, I 
requested additional documents to examine this "accumulation" question. Using the AMS 
seclusion reports for the entire 6-month monitoring period, I calculated the number of 
hours/days each youth spent in seclusion. At first, I simply estimated the number of days the 
youth was in custody during that time, e.g., if he had any seclusion time during the month of 
June, I assumed he was there for the entire month. Once I obtained the preliminary results, I felt 
the need to make the analysis more precise and requested the exact admission and release 
dates for each youth so that I could know the precise number of days in custody, and therefore 
the proportion of that time that the youth spent in seclusion. 

The results of this analysis are summarized in the table below. It includes youth whose total 
seclusion hours/days was 10% or more of their time in custody during the 6-month period. 
[Note: the total time in seclusion was not consecutive.] Of course, the AMS records show that 
there are some youth who spent very little time in seclusion. However, the AMS records also 
show that there are a number of youth who spent a considerable amount of time (20, 30, 40, 
nearly 50 days) in seclusion. Depending on how long the youth was in custody, this could 
amount to significant proportions of his time at Scioto. 

As you know, I have serious concerns about the use of seclusion as a sanction: 

• 

• 
• 

The risk of self-harm increases when youth are isolated. Approximately Y, of the 
suicides that occur in juvenile correctional facilities occur among youth who are in 
disciplinary seclusion. 
Isolation has the potential to exacerbate mental illnesses. 
Seclusion suppresses violent behavior in the moment, but does nothing to address the 
underlying causes of it. Instead, youth often emerge from seclusion feeling angry, 
frustrated and irritable-likely the very emotions that triggered their violent behavior in 
the first place. 
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• Seclusion disengages youth from the people and programs that they need to access in 
order to develop the awareness, skills and desire to control their violent behavior. 

Although I believe it to be ineffective, when youth experience seclusion in very small doses, I 
don't necessarily believe it is harmful. However, when youth's exposure to seclusion 
accumulates, as it has forthe youth listed in the table below, I believe the risk of harm is much 
more significant. 

I offer these data as a starting point for a conversation about how to mitigate these risks for the 
youth who have chronic, aggressive misconduct. Obviously, preventing the misconduct via 
effective treatment is the best solution. Dr. Glindmeyer is reviewing these youth's mental health 
records and may be able to make some recommendations toward that end. When treatment is 
not sufficient, finding ways to address the youth's behavior that are compatible with, rather 
than counterproductive to, the goal of rehabilitation seems essential. 

I plan to summarize these results in the upcoming Monitor's Report, but hope that we can 
initiate a problem-solving discussion about where to go from here in the meantime. 

Respectfully, 

Kelly Dedel, Ph.D. 
Lead Monitor, U.S. v. State af Ohia 

[OJ.] 74 28.54 38.57% 

[B.D.] 184 49.56 26.93% 

[A. F.] 184 43.83 23.82% 

[T.R.] 184 35.36 19.21% 

[D.H.] 184 33.59 18.25% 

[J.A.] 141 24.56 17.42% 

[T.H.] 109 16.27 14.92% 

[M.G.] 137 17.55 12.81% 

[R.B.] 184 23.24 12.63% 

[K.A.] 184 20.57 11.18% 

[0.5.] 184 17.62 9.6% 
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Ohio I Department of 
Youth Services 
John R. Kasich, Governor 
Harvey J. Reed, Director 

November 21,2013 

TO: Stakeholders 

FROM: Director Reed 

RE: Facility Closure 

I want to inform you of the Department's decision to close the Scioto Juvenile Correctional 
Facility (SJCF) on May 3, 2014. Over the course of the past two years, the DYS population has 
dropped from an average of 685 youth in October 2011 to 525 youth in October 2013. With a 23 
percent drop in population, closing the facility improves the efficiency of our operations. 

As of yesterday, there were 38 youth at SJCF (20 males and 18 females who reside 
separately). Male youth will be gradually reassigned to the remaining facilities according 
to their security, educational and programming needs. I am confident that our staff is 
well-equipped to handle these youth safely and effectively. We are evaluating the 
appropriate placement options for our female youth, including placement at private 
residential facilities and Community Corrections Facilities (CCFs), and will certainly 
keep you informed as the plan advances. 

We are required to follow all layoff procedures according to union contracts and the Ohio 
Revised Code; however, we will offer a DYS position to all staff impacted by this closure and 
who are not ready to retire. During the next few weeks, we will work closely with the affected 
bargaining unit and exempt staff to identifY positions for which they are qualified. 

Thank you for your cooperation and support. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any 
questions or concerns by emailing guestions@dys.ohio.gov. 

Cenlra! Office 
30 W. Spring Sireet, 51h Floor 
Columbus, Ohio 43215-2256 

6141466-4314 
www.dys.ohio.gov 
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S.H. v. Reed 
Re: Compliance with Consent Order Provisions regarding Mental Health 
Submitted by: Andrea Weisman, PhD. 
December 16,2013 

Sub-topic II.C.1.a. QAjQI and peer review for mental health and psychiatry 

Mental Health Compliance Rating - Partial Compliance 

Methodology: Peer Review forms were received from each facility: CJCF - N=6, CHJCF­

N=8, Scioto - N=7, IRJCF - N=6. 

Observations: These reviews are titled Clinical File Reviews and reflect provider's 

assessment of 14 areas of concern including, whether the ITP is strength-based, 

whether there is evidence that parents/guardians have been communicated with, 

whether the SOAP format was utilized in the documentation of group and individual 

sessions, etc. The newly created form provides check boxes (Compliant, Non-Compliant 

and N/A). Problems noted include: when non-compliant or N/A is checked there 

frequently is no narrative explaining why the rating was given. In addition, there are 

numerous examples of unchecked boxes or multiple responses to the same question. 

This check box approach does not really get at the quality oftreatment provided or the 

clinical efficacy of their interventions. In order to determine the efficacy of treatment, 

DYS would, for example, need to look at such issues as whether the Sex Offender 

program is working, and for which populations of youth is it working? Are there racial, 

intelligence, psychiatric diagnostic factors that correlate with youth's ability to complete 

the program in a timely way. DYS would also need to examine such issues as what sub­

groups of youth are effectively participating in their CBT curriculum or individual 

therapy, as evidenced by youth engaging in fewer acts of violence or meeting treatment 

objectives. And DYS would be advised to look at whether group and individual services 

are being offered at the recommended frequency, also by the demographic variables 

identified above. 

In addition, Behavioral Health Peer Review forms specifically focused on ITPs were 

received from CJCF (N=16). These forms assess the ITP objectives in terms ofthe 

acronym SMART: Specific (What do we want them to accomplish?), Measurable 

(Concrete criteria established to measure progress. How much, how many, how will I 

know when it is accomplished), Attainable (Plan the steps and associated timeframe 

wisely), Realistic (Is the youth willing and able to meet the objective?) and Timely (Are 
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the time frames associated with objective). This is a form that collects provider's 

responses on 5 separate Likert scales which range from strongly disagree to strongly 

agree (with "neutral" in the center of the scale. Most providers rated the ITPs as 

meeting SMART expectations. 

Since ITPs were also presented for review, it was possible to determine the accuracy of 

ratings on the SMART Peer review forms. For example, one form which rated the ITP 

positively on all indicators, in fact contained an objective that read "Learn and practice 

Skill Card #12: Following instructions and Skill Card #1: Listening over the next 30 days." 

In still another, the objective read "(Youth) and I will continue working together in 

individual sessions to identify his coping skills, coping strategies, common thinking 

errors and his goals, dreams and hopes for the future. This social worker plans on 

continuing to provide regular support, encouragement and advice in order to aid (youth) 

in balancing his thinking. We will complete the CBT packet entitled "Functional 

Behaviors - Making Choices that Work." Neither of these objectives identifies the new 

skill the youth will learn. I have provided consistent feedback over the years: Talking 

about completion of skill cards or CBT packets is not the same thing as skill acquisition. 

If the objective is completion of an assignment, the providers aren't measuring whether 

the problem behavior has decreased when they monitor for progress. And referencing 

what the social worker will do to provide support and encouragement is also not 

appropriate for inclusion in the statement of an objective. As a consequence, this peer 

review process has not meaningfully addressed the integrity of the ITPs. 

There are additional problems with the Peer Review process. Many ofthe SMART 

Review forms are inaccurately filled out. With some providers rating that they "strongly 

disagree" that an objective meets the SMART indicators while the accompanying 

narrative would suggest the provider actually found the objectives to be compliant in 

the context of SMART. Also, where "neutral" is provider's rating, there is frequently no 

narrative to explain the rating. It is substantially unclear what value is added with this 

rating, particularly if it has no narrative clarifying what the rating means. 

While there are continuing difficulties with the QI processes, there is evidence that 

. psychology supervisors are focused on improving ITPs. Both Drs. Dunphy and Hamning 

should receive particular praise for their efforts to improve the quality of ITPs as 

evidenced by their thoughtful feedback to clinicians in both Behavioral Health Staff 

Meeting minutes and on their supervision notes. However their efforts are not reflected 

in the documentation provided for review. 
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Required Action: DYS needs to provide additional training on the writing of ITPs and on 

the forms in used for their peer review process. 

Sub-topic II.C.l.e. Case formulation, fidelity to treatment provided to treatment 
model, treatment planning and treatment teams 

Compliance Rating: Partial Compliance - Case formulation, treatment planning and 
treatment teams 

Compliance Rating: Non- Compliant - Fidelity to treatment provided to treatment 
model 

Methodology:Four Individual Treatment Plans (ITP) from each ofthe four facilities were 
reviewed. CJCF presented an additional 13 ITPs along with their Peer Review 
documentation. This documentation was sufficient to comment on case formulation, 
treatment planning and treatment teams. There was no documentation offered for 
review of fidelity to treatment provided to treatment model. 

Observations: Treatment planning and ITPs continue to be a challenge for all facilities. 
Although we'd previously identified problems with the conceptualization and encoding 
of ITPs, and asked DYS to produce ITPs that was responsive to this observation, none of 
the currently reviewed ITPs are strength-based, nor do they present goals or objectives 
in concrete, measurable terms. Examples across facilities include: Goal: "{Youth will 
address his pro criminal identify mindset and work towards identifying a non criminal 
identity." The corresponding objective is "{Youth and 1 will complete the packet 
"Problems with Authority in our individual sessions." Goal: "(Youth) will be able to 
maintain control over disturbing thoughts and feelings and related impulses that 
contribute to criminal behavior." The corresponding objective reads: "I will use CBT 
techniques to develop an understanding of and be able to identify in everyday 
situations, the ways in which thoughts feelings, behaviors and consequences are 
connected and related to each other." Goal: "Correct irrational thinking, which leads to 
anger and interpersonal problems." And again, the corresponding objective reads: "I will 
use materials from MAV and CBT groups, including thinking reports, to review the last 5 
incidents of angry outbursts and all future incidents to identify the specific triggers that 
were connected with these incidents." 

As has been discussed previously, a case formulation is the essential framework for the 
development of Individual Treatment Plans (ITP). Treatment goals need to reflect real 
world concerns - issues that must be addressed in order for the youth to return to the 
community. Objectives should be designed to develop and measure skill acquisition. 
Plans need to be assessed in terms oftheir efficacy in helping the youth acquire the 
desired skills, and revised monthly - or more often - if it becomes clear that the ITP is 
not working. Articulating objectives as the completion of paper and pencil tasks or 
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studying Skill Cards does not address the development of new replacement behaviors. 
These are rather, strategies being employed in the service ofthe development of new 
skills, they are not in and of themselves, evidence of skill acquisition. 

Required Action: UntillTPs are made more meaningful, mental health service delivery is 
compromised. The ITP is a roadmap, and if it doesn't outline what the staff is trying to 
achieve with the youth, there's no way for providers to assess whether the youth is 
improving. If DYS is to receive an improved compliance rating with regard to fidelity 
monitoring, they will have to produce evidence that they are engaging in such 
monitoring. This is a recommendation that has been made repeatedly over the years. 

Sub-topic II.C.l.f. Behavior contracts 

Compliance rating - Partial Compliance 
Methodology: Five Intensive Behavior Contracts from each facility were reviewed. 

Comments: As a general matter, there is noted improvement in the Intensive Behavior 
Contracts. There is consistency across facilities in their use of a newly revised Intensive 
Behavior Contract format. The Contracts now evidence only one or two target 
behaviors, some document the frequency of occurrence of the noxious behavior, and all 
offer both incentives and consequences. All Contracts are now scheduled for review 7 
days from the date of its signing, and, Contracts evidence attempts to articulate goals in 
incremental steps: "I (youth) agree I will perform the following behavior: maintain a 
distance of an arm's length when upset, use respectful language when discussing my 
issue, and maintain a low voice volume lout of 3 times," "I will maintain an arm's 
length of space between myself and all female staff lout of 2 times." 

There are however, some continuing challenges with the Contracts. In particular, the 
incentives are not sufficiently incentivizing: "I will earn an extra snack provided by the 
UM or SWat a predetermined time," "I can listen to 15 minutes of music in my SW or 
psychologist's office," "15 minutes with an MP3 player on her unit," "I will earn 10 
minutes in my room." As has been noted previously, incentives should be both 
proximate to the production ofthe desired behavior and should be sufficiently 
incentivizing so as to be rewarding to the youth. An extra 10 minutes in one's room at 
the end of a week of not engaging in target behaviors just not enough of a carrot for an 
adolescent. Incentives should be meaningful and determined in collaboration with the 
youth. In order to be maximally rewarding, as previously noted, they should also be 
more proximate to the production of desired behavior -like daily. 

In addition, all Contracts begin with the statement that "I (youth) enter into the 
following contract in order to create and maintain order and harmony in the facility." In 
point of fact, Behavior Contracts are entered into in order to enhance the youth's ability 
to engage in replacement behaviors - that is, new behaviors that replace the target 
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behaviors. If and when successful, it is likely that it will facilitate "order and harmony in 
the facility," however, that is not the purpose of the Contracts. 

Contracts reviewed were developed from July through October. None were signed by 
the youth, clinician, UM, or supervisory behavioral health staff. No evidence was 
provided that any ofthe Contracts were reviewed. As such, itis impossible to know 
whether these Contracts were implemented, or if revising these Contracts was just a 
training exercise for the practitioners. As a consequence, it is impossible to determine if 
these Contracts are more efficacious than their predecessors. To determine the efficacy 
of the Contracts, DYS would have to track whether the youth met the goal and got the 
reward, or didn't meet the goal and got the consequence. 

Required Action: DYS needs to provide documentation that reviews ofthe behavior 
contracts is occurring and that they are reducing the target behaviors. 

Sub-topic II.C.l.h. Discipline for youth on the mental health caseload through the 
intervention hearing process 

Compliance Rating - Partial Compliance 

Since my preliminary recommendations in November, 2013, no new documentation has 
been presented for review regarding discipline for youth on the mental health caseload. 
We were advised that DYS has revised their policy "Intervention Procedures for Youth 
with Mental Illness, Cognitive or Development'll Disabilities (policy 303.01.04). Policy 
now requires that clinicians attend intervention hearings if: there are mental health 
and/or developmental issues that may have impacted the youth's behavior at the time 
ofthe rule violation, and ifthere are mental health and/or developmental issues that 
should be considered regarding disposition of the youth iffound proven. 

This was recommended in our earlier Mental Health findings report, and it is all to the 
good that DYS is incorporating this recommendation into their operating procedures. 

I have substantial concern however, that DYS is continuing to seclude mentally ill youth 
who are charged with rule infractions. While some amount of room confinement may 
be appropriate in some instances, when mentally ill youth are secluded, especially for 
protracted periods, they suffer harmful consequences. When a mentally ill youth winds 
up in secluSion, it is incumbent on the practitioners to modify the ITP appropriately to 
extinguish the behavior. If the youth continues in seclusion without a corresponding 
modification of his/her ITP,.the seclusion will just exacerbate the behavior problems DYS 
is seeking to extinguish. 
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In a Behavioral Health Staff Meeting note from Dr. Hamning at Scioto (8/21/13)' he 
documents that "half ofthe kids are in seclusion (on Buckeye) a good majority of time." 
In particular, I have concern about how youth who were transferred off the Progress 
Units - all of whom were on the mental health case load - are being managed in their 
new units. Historically - before DYS undertook drastic reforms to change the PROGRESS 
Unit program design - the PROGRESS Unit and SMUs before it exacerbated challenging 
youth behavior by keeping youth locked in their cells for most or all of the day, for 
weeks or months on end. Dr. Hamning's note raises concerns that the youth who have 
transitioned out ofthe PROGRESS Unit are still being managed with long stays in 
seclusion, by way of the IRAV and sanction seclusion processes rather than by way of a 
maximum security housing unit. If DYS's treatment interventions have not evolved 
enough to identify why these youth and others with serious mental health issues are 
behaving in the ways that they are, it is more likely that these youth will spend 
significant lengths oftime in seclusion, an intervention that actually undermines the 
effectiveness of treatment. 

In order to establish whether or not this is occurring, it will be necessary to review AMS 
logs, ITPs, Behavior Management Plans and seclusion hours for all the youth who 
transferred off Progress to other units. 

Of course the concern extends to other mentally ill youth in DYS facilities. 

Since DYS's announcement regarding the closure of Scioto, plaintiffs have expressed 
their concern "that youth on the mental health caseload who did not receive adequate 
treatment in the PROGRESS Unit will now be dispersed to the remaining institutions and 
continue to have deficient case formulation, treatment planning, behavior contracts, 
excessive diSCipline and excessive segregation. Similar youth who would have otherwise 
been transferred to the PROGRESS unit may be facing the same problem." It is clear to 
me that the deficiencies in behavioral health care led to high rates of seclusion for youth 
at Scioto, and that the same deficiencies exist at the other three DYS facilities. What I 
do not know from the documentation I have been provided is whether youth with 
mental illnesses are experiencing high rates of seclusion at the other three DYS facilities. 
Given the recent closures of both the PROGRESS Unit and Scioto JCF, plaintiffs' question 
regarding whether youth with behavioral challenges at other facilities spend a 
significant portion oftheir DYS stays in seclusion is a valid one. Such a determination, 
however, could be made only after a more thorough review of the AMS data and 
treatment files of mental health caseload youth who have experienced multiple 
Intervention Hearings over the last six months. 

Required Action: By mid-January DYS should produce documentation that identifies the 
seclusion hours for "frequent fliers" and indicate whether they are on the mental health 
caseload. This, along with their ITPs and Intensive Behavior Management Plans will help 
to determine if IDTs are addressing the behavior that has led to seclusion, and the 
harmful effects of seclusion itself. 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

EASTERN DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

THE STATE OF OHIO, et al., 

Defendants. 

v. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

DECLARATION OF PAUL DEMURO 

Paul DeMuro declares as follows under penalty of perjury: 

CIVIL ACTION NO: 
2:08-cv-475 

L My name is Paul DeMuro. I submit this declaration in support of the 
United States' motion for a temporary restraining order. My address is 1201 
Futch Creek Rd., Wilmington, N.C. 28411. I have been retained by the 
United States to, among other things, provide my opinion whether limitations 
proposed by the United States on the use of seclusion of juveniles are reasonable, 
appropriate, and capable of being implemented rapidly without causing significant 
disruption to security and operations in a juvenile justice facility. 

2. I have over forty-three years of experience in juvenile justice and child welfare 
services. I have been superintendent of a large urban, secure juvenile detention 
center, as well as superintendent of a large training school for juvenile 
delinquents. I have served as Assistant Commissioner of the Massachusetts 
Department of Youth Services, overseeing all parole supervision for adjudicated 
juveniles h'1 Massachusetts. In the late 1970's, I was appointed by the Governor 
of Pennsylvania to serve as the Commissioner of Children and Youth in 
Pennsylvania. As the Commissioner, I supervised the superintendents of 
Pennsylvania's juvenile justice institutions, including all of the state's secure 
institutions for the most violent juvenile offenders. As Commissioner, I 
developed state regulations that governed the operation of secure county juvenile 
detention centers. I have developed public and contract residential and non­
residential programs for delinquent youth, including model secure treatment 
programs for violent offenders. 

3. I am knowledgeable about contemporary juvenile justice and child welfare 
program standards, policies and practices. For over six years I served as the 

Case: 2:08-cv-00475-ALM-MRA Doc #: 131-1 Filed: 03/12/14 Page: 25 of 37 PAGEID #: 2989 



Federal Court monitor in a class action case in Florida, overseeing on a regular 
basis conditions of confinement in Florida's secure juvenile correctional 
institutions. I held a similar appointment for the Federal District Court in 
Oklahoma. As Federal Court monitor, I monitored Florida's and Oklahoma's 
secure institntional and community programs for youths and reported to the 
Federal Court. More recently, I have served as a Federal Court monitor in a New 
Orleans secure juvenile detention case, and I presently serve as a Federal Court 
Monitor in Mississippi in a case involving a secure commitment program for 
youth tried and convicted as adults. The use of disciplinary seclusion is severely 
limited in both the New Orleans and Mississippi secure programs. I have been 
appointed as a mediator in a number of cases to help resolve class action juvenile 
justice and child welfare cases. As a consultant, I routinely evaluate juvenile 
justice and child welfa.'"C programs and services. I have reviewed juvenile justice 
institntions, including juvenile justice secure institntions and child welfare 
programs in Alabama, Arizona, California, Florida, Georgia, Kentncky, Illinois, 
Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, New Jersey, New York City, North Carolina, 
Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, South Dakota and 
Texas. I have evaluated a variety of state and COllllty run juvenile correctional 
institntions, including secure juvenile facilities, for the United States Department 
of Justice (the "DOJ"). My clients have included state juvenile justice agencies, 
state child welfare agencies, county juvenile justice agencies, the U.S. Department 
of Justice, the National Juvenile Detention Association (now part of the National 
Partnership for Juvenile Services), and private Foundations. I have co-edited an 
anthology regarding violent offenders (Violent Juvenile Offenders, I 984) and 
have co-authored a book regarding the problems of overcrowding in the 
California Youth Authority's secure institutions (Reforming the CYA, 1988). I 
have written a number of reports and articles concerning young offenders and 
secure institntional and alternative programs designed to serve them. Exhibit I 
contains my cv and my consulting prospectus, which contains a list of my 
publications. Exhibit II identifies court cases in which I have served as an expert 
witness or court-appointed expert/monitor. 

4. The opinions expressed in this declaration are based on my experience in the field 
and my knowledge of juvepile justice standards, policies and practices. I have not 
reviewed Ohio Department of Juvenile Corrections' ("DYS") policies or 
practices, nor have I reviewed DYS data or records or interviewed Ohio staff or 
juveniles. However, it is clear that the use of seclusion in juvenile institutions 
causes more harm than good and, therefore, the use of and the duration of 
seclusion should be limited to the absolute minimum degree possible.1 Youth in 
isolation cannot participate in programs designed to address their problems. In 

I See, "The Use of Seclusion IS Not Evidence Based Practice", The Journal of Child Abuse and 
Adolescent Psychiatric Nursing, Oct -Dec. 2001. Linda Finke, the author of this article, concludes that "the 
scientific evidence available illustrates that the use of seclusion with children is not therapeutic and is, in 
fact, hannfuL .. " Also consider what a non-academic expert John Me Cain says about isolation: '~It's an 
awful thing, solitary ... .It crushes your spirit and weakens your resistance more than any other form of 
mistreatment." The New Yorker, March 30, 2009, Atul Gawande, "Annals of Human Rights: Hellhole". 
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essence youth who are perceived as being most in need of rehabilitative services 
are, when they are in isolation, denied access to those supportive interventions. In 
addition, isolation has direct negative consequences. Youth in isolation are more 
likely to commit suicide and/or to self mutilate than youth in the general 
population. Youth in isolation often become depressed; many youth in isolation 
become angry and more agitated and thus even more resentful of staff. The use of 
isolation is counterproductive. Isolated yonth often feel more depressed and 
desperate. Locking a youth in a cell does not reduce a youth's acting out. Its use 
only makes matters worse. 

5. I understand that the United States has proposed the following limitations on the 
use of seclusion at facilities operated by DYS. (My specific observations 
regarding them are set forth in italics): 

A. Refrain from secluding any boy with an identified mental health disorder 
for more than 24 hours without providing hlln, outside of his confinement 
area 811d during normal facility prograJUmiug times, at least four hours of 
programming (e.g., mental health counseling, exercise, education or 
combinations thereof); 

B. Refrain from imposing more than three consecutive days of seclusion in 
any form (e.g., prehearing seclusion and intervention seclusion) on any 
boy with an identified mental health disorder. In fact, the pre-hearing time 
should be limited to the degree possible. Youth should not be placed in 
seclusion on a pre-hearing basis if they are in control. All youth in 
seclusion either on a pre-hearing basis or on a diSCiplinary basis should 
be out of the confinement area/cell for at least four hours in any given 
twenty-:four hour period during normal programming time. There is no 
evidence to suggest that longer periods of seclusion improve a youth's 
behavior. In fact the available evidence strongly pOints in the exact 
opposite direction, for all youth, and particularly for youth with mental 
health problems. 

C. Refrain from imposing more than three days of seclusion in any form 
\vithin a 30-day period on any boy with an identified mental health 
disorder without first: 

1. Conducting a comprehensive mental health treatment review of the 
boy that includes the treatment team meeting and reviewing the 
boy's mental health treatment pl8l1 to consider and address 
potential problems with the plan 8l1d its in1plementation. The 
treatment review should include the key staff responsible for the 
youth (including the security, clinical and educational stafJ). In all 
possible cases the specific youth should participate in the 
treatment review. The purpose of the review/meeting would be to 
develop a specific and detailed behavioral plan that is designed to 
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safely supervise the youth in the program - without relying on 
seclusion/isolation; 

2. Obtaining the prior written approval of the Deputy Director of 
DYS responsible for Facility programming; and 

3. Providing written notice to the United States and monitor within 24 
hours of a yonth exceeding three days of seclusion within a single 
month, describing the amount of seclusion, reason for seclusion, 
treatment provided in response to seclusion, whether the youth's 
behavior intervention plan was modified or created, and 
alternatives to seclusion that were rejected. 

D. Refrain from imposing restraints as an alternative to seclusion. 

6. In my opinion, these limitations are reasonable, appropriate, and capable of being 
implemented in a short period of time without causing significant disruption to 
security and operations. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on March 7, 2014 

C! dtJ eM lJut~ 
Pl(ul DeMuro 
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Exhibit I, Consulting Prospectus 

DeMuro: CONSULTING PROSPECTUS 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Forty-three years experience managillg people, programs, budgets and processes for youth serving 
programs; extensive experience providillg a wide range of consultiilg services to support 
progressive efforts to improve programs for troubled youth and families. Examples: Functions as a 
senior consultant to the Annie E. Casey Foundation's child welfare and juvenile justice initiatives; 
helps plan and evaluate innovative child welfare and juvenile justice projects. Experienced at 
conductiilg fact-findiilg evaluations of community-based and illstitutional programs; retained by 
public illterest attorneys in a variety of federal and state court cases. Experienced expert witness. 

Developed mediated settlements ill child welfare and juvenile justice class action litigation ill 
Oklahoma, Tennessee and Hamilton County, Ohio. Appoillted by Federal Courts ill Florida and 
Oklahoma and New Orleans to monitor consent decrees designed to improve services for children, 
youth and families. Designed case management systems for Hawaii's and Missouri's state youth 
services organization; conducts risk assessment studies and other policy studies for a variety of 
states; designs and conducts training seminars for child welfare and juvenile justice staff. Editor, 
Violent Juvenile Offenders: An Anthology, 1984; co-author, Reforming the California Youth 
Authority, 1988; author of Annie E. Casey training monographs and several articles; former 
Vice-president, National Council on Criine and Delillquency. Held a variety of leadership 
positions withiil state governments: e.g., Pennsylvania Commissioner of Children and Youth. 
Curriculum vitae available. 

CONSULTING SERVICES 

Developing and Monitoring Court Ordered Settlements 

Designs, implements and monitors step-by-step plans to comply with court ordered 
mandates, usually as a result of class action litigation. Examples: Developed 
settlement agreements/court ordered implementation plans for class action law suits ill 
Florida, Indiana, New Mexico, New Orleans, Oklahoma, Tennessee and Hamilton County, Ohio. 
Appoillted by Federal District Courts to serve on Court appointed Panels to develop and negotiate 
settlement agreements, and ill Oklahoma and Florida to monitor class action settlements. Able to 
develop agreements among parties regardillg settlillg class action litigation. 

Fact Finding, Negotiating and Expert Witness Services 

Organizes and implements fact-findillg investigations to help resolve litigation involving 
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public and private youth serving agencies. Expert in assessing conditions of confinement. 
Identifies and leads highly qualified teams of professionals to evaluate community 
based and institutional programs. Able to enter adversarial situations, discover the facts, 
and assist in either resolving/mediating the case or preparing for trial. Experienced 
at interviewing children, youth and staff involved in law suits. Has helped develop 
settlement agreements and has testified at numerous trials in Federal and state courts. 
Examples: Retained by the Civil Rights Division of U.S. Justice Department and public interest 
law firms to investigate and document alleged unconstitutional conditions in a number of private 
and public institutions throughout the country. 

Policy Oriented Research 

Over forty years experience writing and directing policy studies, articles, reports, evaluations and 
other materials designed to analyze public policy questions and present alternative courses of 
action. Examples: Directed risk assessment studies of institutional 
populations in five states; these studies often help bring about major organizational 
change. Retained by state legislative committee in Tennessee to conduct studies on 
juvenile justice issues, child welfare and managed health care issues. Co-authored book 
analyzing California's juvenile justice system. Co-edited a book on violent juvenile offenders and 
published a number of reports and articles concerning troubled youth and public policy. 

Evaluation and Technical Assistance 

Conducts management and program evaluations of public & contracted youth serving 
programs and agencies. Analyzes problems and develops specific recommendations. Examples: 
Foundation supported evaluation of Hawaii's juvenile justice system (nopportunity for Refo=n, 
1987) and program evaluation of Toledo, Ohio's substance abuse programs; developed mediated 
settlement in a New Mexico conditions of confinement case (2009). Conducts comprehensive 
evaluations of detention centers and training schools. Examples: evaluation of Maryland training 
school (Hickey) which led to the refo= and privatization of that institution; evaluation of 
Cleveland's detention center and Toledo's detention system. Conducts program and systemic 
reviews of public 
youth serving programs for state legislative committees. Example: Review of 
Iowa's residential programs for delinquent youth. Provides technical assistance/planning 
to Directors of state agencies. Examples: Senior consultant to the Annie E. Casey's highly 
successful initiative aimed at reforming juvenile detention (JDAl) in several public jurisdictions. 
Helped develop case management and day treatment services in Missouri. Assisted public 
interest law firm in Mississippi to close a refo= school for girls (Columbia). 

Plan and Conduct Staff Training 

Plans, directs and offers a variety of training workshops, seminars and other training efforts 
designed to improve the skill level and knowledge of direct service staff. 
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Examples: designed and conducted team-building and case management training for 
executive staff of the Missouri and Alabama Departments of Youth Services. Plans 
and conducts skill-building workshops for public defenders sponsored by the 
American Bar Association; plans and conducts training workshops for child welfare staff 
sponsored by the Anuie E. Casey Foundation: Conducts child welfare 
training: e. g. ,"Team Decision Making" in a number of jurisdictions. 

Direct Services -- Program Development 

Plans, organizes and implements innovative and cost effective, youth services within 
gove=ent and non-profit organizations at the local, state and national levels. 
Examples: Developed statewide system of non-residential interventions 
in Massachusetts for adjudicated delinquents. Planned and directed nationally recognized 
community-based program model for adjudicated delinquents in Cook County. 
Planned crisis intervention program for Toledo, Ohio. Implemented model 
correctional program for the U.S. Department of Justice, developing 
multi-site, state-of-the-art, intensive, secure programs for violent juvenile offenders. 

PARTIAL CLIENT LIST 
Government Agencies: 

U. S. Justice Department, Civil Rights Division, Washington, DC. 

State Human Service Departments, Child Welfare & Juvenile Justice Agencies: 
(e.g., Hawaii, Indiana, Missouri, New Jersey, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee & Texas) 

State Legislative Committees: Iowa & Tennessee 

County Human Service, Child Welfare & Juvenile Justice Agencies: (e.g. Cook, Ill.; Cuyahoga, 
Hamilton, Lucas Counties, Ohio; Jefferson County, Ala.; Multnomah, Oregon.) 

County Juvenile Probation: (e.g .. Lucas Co. Ohio; Tarrant County, Fort Worth, Texas) 

Federal Courts: 

Federal District Courts: Tallahassee, Fl.; Oklahoma City, OK. & Washington, DC 

Private Foundations: 

The Anuie E Casey Foundation, Baltimore, Maryland. 
The MacArthur Foundation, Chicago, Ill. 
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Public Interest Law: 

The American Bar Association's Juvenile Justice Center 
Juvenile Law Center, Philadelphia, P A 
National Center for Youth Law, San Francisco 
Public Defenders Office, Dade Co" Fl 
Youth Law Center, San Francisco. 
The Southern Poverty Law Center, AL 

Private Attorneys: 

Goldstein & McGroder, Phoenix, Arizona 
Robert Link, Jacksonville, Fla. 
Covington & Burling, Washington, DC 

Research, Policy & Technical Assistance Centers: 

The National Juvenile Detention Association 
The John Howard Association 
The Urban Institute. 

List of Publications and Reports As of 1/31114 

Books 

Violent Juvenile Offenders: An Anthology, National Council on Crime and Delinquency, 1984. 
Co-editor. 

Reforming The California Youth Authority, Common Knowledge Press, 1988. Co-author. 

Articles and Reports [some co-authored] 

"Preliminary Plan: Reducing the Population in Florida's Training Schools", March 1986. Report 
to the Federal District Court, Tallahassee, Fl. 

"Report of the Jerry M. Panel", March, 1987. Submitted to Washington, D.C. Superior Court. 

"Adjudicated Youth in Delaware Who Need Secure Care", National Council on Crime And 
Delinquency, 1987. 

"Hawaii's Juvenile Justice System: Opportunity for Reform", August 1987. Funded by the Clark 
Foundation, New York, NY. 

"Resisting the Adultification of Juvenile Corrections: Rational Programs for Violent Juvenile 
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Offenders", American Psychological Association Newsletter, Winter, 1988. 

"At the Crossroads: A Population Profile of Youth Committed to the Alabama Department of 
Youth Services", 1989. Funded by the Clark Foundation, New York, NY. 

"Population Profile and Risk Assessment Study: Mississippi Department of Youth Services", 
February 1989, Center for Study of Youth Policy, University of Michigan. 

"Risk Assessment of Adjudicated Delinquents, Division for Children and Youth Services, State of 
New Hampshire," December 1989, Center for Study of Youth Policy, University of Michigan. 

"Framework for Dispositional Decisions", Alabama Division of Youth Services, 1990. 

"In Search of Excellence: Reflections Regarding the Improvement of the Missouri Division of 
Youth Services", April 1990. 

"Comprehensive Services for Oklahoma's Delinquent, Deprived, lNT & lNS Children: The Terry 
D. Panel Report", December 1990. Submitted to the Federal District Court, Oklahoma City, Oklo 

Final Report of the Alabama Detention Project", July 1991. Prepared for the State of Alabama, 
Juvenile Detention Advisory Committee. 

"Final Report: Iowa's Service Delivery System For China & Delinquent Youth", June 30, 1993. 
Study conducted for the Iowa State Legislature. 

"OverCrowding in Juvenile Detention: Some Concrete Suggestions", June 1996. 

"Conditions of Confmement Review: Cuyahoga County Juvenile Detention Center", NJDA, 
September 1997. 

"Developing Partnerships with Neighborhoods and Local Co=unities", the Family to Family 
Initiative, the Casey Foundation, 1997. 

"Team Decision-making: Involving the Family and Co=unity in Child Welfare Decisions", the 
Family to Family Initiative, the Casey Foundation, 1997. 

A Reasonable Alternative to Locking More Kids Up: The Development of Jurisdictional Core 
Groups, [with Earl Dunlap], Special Edition: Journal for Juvenile Justice Issues. and Detention 
Services, NJDA, Spring, 1998. 

Crowding in Juvenile Detention Centers: A Problem Solving Manual, [with Sue Burrell, Earl 
Dunlap, Carl Sanniti and Loren Warboys], OJJDP, December 1998. 

Consider the Alternatives: Planning & Implementing Non-Secure Detention Alternatives", the 
Casey Foundation, November, 1999. 
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"Be All You Can Be - Reflection on Leadership Development & Staff Training", Spring 2003, 
Journal for Juvenile Justice and Detention Services, Spring 2003. 

"Good News From Toledo: Real Improvements in Detention", Journal for Juvenile Justice and 
Detention Services, Fall 2003. 

"Boot Camps Revisited", Journal of Juvenile Justice Services, National Partnership for Juvenile 
Services, Vol. 22, # 1,2008. 

"Why Child Welfare Agencies Should Limit the Role of Residential Care", Journal of Juvenile 
Justice Services, National Partnership for Juvenile Services, Vol. 22, # 1,2008. 

"Toward Abolishing the Use of Disciplinary Isolation in Juvenile Justice Institutions: Some Initial 
Ideas", January 22,2014. Published on the web. 
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Paul DeMuro 

PROFESSIONAL STRENGTHS 

* Providing a wide variety of consulting services to youth serving agencies 

* Planning and conducting fact-finding and dispute resolution efforts 

* Planning and directing program and policy oriented research and evaluation efforts 

* CommUnicating effectively to staff, the public and media 

* Planning and implementing successful programs 

* Providing imaginative and cost effective leadership for innovative youth policy 
initiatives 

* Managing complex contract, budget, personnel and program interventions 

* Planning & providing a variety of staff training initiatives 

* Supervising, developing and motivating staff 

* Producing successfully under intense financial, political and time pressures 

BACKGROUND 

Forty three experience managing staff, programs, budgets and processes designed to 
improve a wide variety of youth serving agencies. Experienced at conducting fact-finding 
evaluations. of community-based and institutional programs; expert on conditions of 
confinement. Retained by the US Justice Department and public interest attorneys in a 
variety of federal and state court cases. Experienced expert witness. Developed mediated 
settlements in child welfare class action litigation in Oklahoma, Tennessee and Hamilton 
County, Ohio. Appointed by Federal Courts in Florida and Oklahoma to monitor statewide 
consent decrees designed to improve services for children, youth and families. Designed 
case management systems for Hawaii's and Missouri's state youth services organizations; 
conducted risk assessment and policy studies for state and county agencies; designed and 
conducted trai..iJ.i.ng seminars for child welfare and juvenile justice staff. Presently serves as 
a senior consultant for the Annie E. Casey Foundation and the National Juvenile Detention 
Association. Consulting prospectus, list of publications and references available upon 
request. Married with four children. Interests include reading, tennis and music. 
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EDUCATION 

BA, Villanova University, 1963. 

MA, Villanova, 1965. 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY' 

1983 - to present. Founder and principal staff of a small, flexible consulting 
fi= that provides a variety of policy, program, management and conflict 
resolution services to private and public youth serving agencies. Clients 
include the US Justice Department, federal Courts, state and county agencies, 
private foundations, public interest attorneys and the private Bar, 

1979 - 1983. Vice-Presidentfor Program Services, National Council on Crime 
and Delinquency. Responsible for field related activities of nationally 
prominent criminal justice agency. Managed national projects, maintained 
liaison with other national and state organizations; conducted policy and 
evaluation studies; supervised and delivered technical assistance to state and 
local juvenile justice agencies. Prepared and delivered testimony 
to US Congress and state legislative bodies. Prepared publications; developed 
and offered training to professional staff. While with NCCD, directed two 
national juvenile justice projects: (1) Citizen Advocacy Network project, a $1.5 
million dollar, four state effort to involve local citizens in efforts aimed at 
improving their juvenile justice systems; (2) Violent Juvenile Offender 
Research and Development Project, a $3.5 million dollar project aimed at 
testing innovative interventions for violent offenders: developed program 
models and request for proposals; supervised competitive bidding process; and 
oversaw all fiscal and program reporting to the US Justice Department. 

1978 - 1979. Commissioner of Children and Youth, Pennsylvania Department 
of Public Welfare. Responsible for $300 million dollars of state funding to 
provide management and program supports for services to over 35,000 children 
and youth. Policy and program responsibilities included the state's day care, 
child welfare and juvenile justice programs. 
Prepared budgets, developed regulations, drafted legislation and represented 
the Governor's office in local, state and national negotiations. Supervised the 
state training school system. 
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1975 - 1978. Director, Office of Corrections Education. Created and directed 
this office which had fiscal, planning and evaluation responsibility for 
educational programs in the state's run adult and juvenile correctional 
institutions which held over 9,000 offenders. 

1973 - 1975. Director, Unified Delinquency Intervention Services, Illinois 
Department of Children and Family Services. Planned and implemented this 
nationally recognized model that serves adjudicated youth. UDIS diverts youth 
from institutional placement by using a network of community-based 
placements and strong case management. 

1970 - 1973. Massachusetts Department of Youth Services (DYS). With DYS 
held three positions of increasing responsibilities: Assistant Commissioner for 
Aftercare (1972 - 73), supervised all non-institutional programs for adjudicated 
youth (e.g., parole, group homes, non-residential interventions, etc.). 
Supervised seven regional offices with 220 staff and a purchase of service 
budget of $5 million; Director of Non-Residential Programs ( 1971 - 72), 
developed and administered a statewide network of non-residential 
interventions providing educational, vocational, counseling and mentoring 
supports to more than 1000 youth living at home or in foster care. Sponsors of 
programs included churches, community groups and traditional youth serving 
agencies. Superintendent, Shirley Industrial School (1970- 71), responsible for 
125 bed refonn school for "hard core" delinquents aged 14 - 18. 

1963 - 1970. University English Instructor, Ohio State University (1965 - 70); 
Villanova (1963 -1965). 
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